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ACADEMIC SENATE MINUTES

Volume XXV, No. 14

May 4, 1994
Call to Order
Roll Call
Approval of Minutes of April 6,

1994 and April 20, 1994

Chairperson's Remarks
Vice Chairperson's Remarks
student Government Association President's Remarks
Administrators' Remarks
Report from Dr. Paul Baker on Univ.
Academic Enhancement Committee
ACTION ITEMS:

INFORMATION ITEMS:

Approval of New Student Code of
Conduct (With Amendments)
NONE

communications
Committee Reports
Adjournment
Meetings of the Academic Senate are open to members of the
University Community.
Persons attending the meetings may
participate in discussions with the consent of the Senate.
Pe r sons desiring to bring items to the attention of the
Senate may do so by contacting any member of the Senate.
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ACADEMIC SENATE MINUTES

(Not Approved by the Academic Senate)
May 4,

1994

Volume XXV, No. 14

CALL TO ORDER

Chairperson Len Schmaltz called the meeting of the Academic
Senate to order at 7:15 p.m. in the Circus Room of the Bone
Student Center.
ROLL CALL

Secretary Susan
quorum present.

Winchip

called

the

roll

and

declared

a

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF APRIL 6, 1994 AND APRIL 20, 1994:

Senator Kaiser:
Correction to the Minutes of April 6,
1994:
Page 26, third paragraph, first line should read:
"five million gypsies, gays, independent thinking persons,
etc."
XXV-123
Motion to approve Minutes of April 6,
(Second, Wilner) carried on a voice vote.

1994,

by

Lentz

Senator Lind:
Correction to the Minutes of April 20, 1994:
Page 14, the Secretary of the Administrative Affairs
Committee is: Shelly Bull.
XXV-124
Motion to approve Minutes of April 20,
(Second, Lind) carried on a voice vote.

1994,

by

Zervic

CHAIRPERSON'S REMARKS

Chairperson Len Schmaltz:
I wish everyone good luck on
final exams and have a good summer.
VICE CHAIRPERSON'S REMARKS:

Vice Chairperson, Jordan Wilner:
Have a good summer.
I
would like to thank all the student senators for doing a
really good job at the beginning of their Senate term. Your
involvement has been pretty impressive, and I have heard
that from a number of faculty members.
I would also like
to say for the record, good-bye to the Student Regent, James
Hoffmann, who had done an exceptional job.
He was a
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previous senator and served as a JUAC Member before becoming
Student Regent.
He has been someone to look up to.
STUDENT GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION PRESIDENT'S REMARKS

Student Government Association President, Jennifer Cowsert:
had no remarks.

ADMINISTRATORS' REMARKS
PRESIDENT WALLACE yielded his turn to Dr. Paul Baker, Chair
of the University Academic Enhancement Committee for a
report.
DR. PAUL BAKER:
I would like to introduce three other
members of my committee who are present this evening:
Bev
Smith, CJS;. Paula smith, SED;
and Herman Brockman,
Biology.
These particular colleagues have been very much
involved in every phase of this work.

Tonight I will give you an update of our work and I do have
a handout, so take one and pass it around.
This committee officially began its work on December 13,
1993, when we had our first meeting with the President to
get a sense for the nature of the problems and issues that
he wanted us to address.
On December 16, 1993, the
President issued an open letter to the campus presenting the
commi ttee members and the work he expected of the commi t "t ee.
On December 16th, I as Chair of the Committee issued an open
letter to the University community that was carefully
crafted by all committee members.
We worked together on
that.
That was the moment when people were first aware of
the committee and its work.
The committee has been
actively working ever since on a very regular basis, at
least once a week for at least two hours.
On many
occasions we held two long meetings a week plus long
subcommittee meetings.
One College Dean calls us the
dreadful Baker Committee.
That is one of the more
complimentary comments.
One of my dearest colleagues and
friends said:
"Paul, the best thing you can hope for is
that your committee's work is utterly irrelevant."
He is
afraid that we might have an impact on ISU, and he is
worried about that.
Most comments are rather negative
about our work, because most people perceive our work in the
vice of a zero sum relationship in which there will be
winners and losers.
We are looked upon as the people
seeking the identification of the winner's circle and they
want to know when will the other shoe fall, and where are
the losers?
I appreciate the ambiguity, the tension, and
the concerns that a lot of people have.
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As members of the Senate, I want you to be the first to know
tonight that you will get the full report which is now being
drafted.
That will be finished within the next week to two
weeks as the committee will meet next Monday.
I am under
the gun to have that draft finished for the committee at
that time.
We will then begin to work with that report.
We will
share
it with the
President
and
have
an
understanding with him on what we have written in that
report.
The committee will also inform the Provost and the
College Deans, -- we want them to be fully appraised of our
report.
Once those processes are in place, the committee
will finalize its committee report and it will be a public
document and the Senate, for sure, will have copies of that
final written report.
It is your responsibility to
provide oversight for all work at ISU and I welcome the
opportunity to return and have a full discussion when you
have that report -- whenever that would be.
So, this is
not your only shot at me at all. This is simply an overview
of what we have been doing.
I would expect members of the
committee to come back when you have a full record to study
in full detail.
Tonight, I see it as an update so that you
are aware of what is happening.
Obviously, I would be glad
to answer any questions.
Those that I cannot answer, I
have three colleagues in the balcony who will help.
Let me quickly share with you what I have just given you.
This is the outline of the report that is being written.
These are the eight key p.o ints we are going to address in
the report. What we are not doing, and I want to emphasize
what we are not doing, is simply identifying a group of high
quality programs, handing the list in and running, and
letting others figure out what to do next with what we have
done.
We believe such an approach to this work would be
irresponsible and a failure to the charge that we have. The
more important issue for us is to understand the critical
questions in the 1990' s on how universities come to grips
with issues of quality,
identifying that quality and
enhancing that quality.
But, we do not believe that the
issues can be simply summarized by:
"Here's a list of
programs. "
and that's it.
There is much more to this
than that, and we will glad to address all aspects of our
work from beginning to end.
This is the outline of the report, so you can see the issues
that we are going to address.
Page two and three that I
have handed you is the final document that we worked the
better part of a month to create on the criteria that we
used to guide the process.
This was our final draft of
this particular item.
Pages four and five are the list of
programs identified by the Deans in consultation with us
we worked with the Deans.
Those approximately 63 programs
were identified in our work, and those programs that are
underlined are the ones nominated by the college deans as
the high qual i ty programs.
We are now examining the
4

nominations. This part of our work is not finished. Let me
fill you in a little bit about our process and then we can
take up these documents and you can ask any questions that
you want.
I divided the work of our committee essentially into three
phases:
The first phase was to sort out what we were doing
and to understand the President's concerns and having many
conversations with him and addressing the questions of
quality and academic enhancement and getting a focus for our
work.
That phase of our work was in December and January.
On February 1st, there was a meeting of the Provost Staff,
the President, and all College Deans.
At that time I
presented a one page memo of understanding with the
President on our responsibilities.
That memo was then
published campuswide.
At that point Phase I of our work
was in place.
We had established a common goal on our
mission, our charge, our objectives.
We then proceeded to
work on the detailed procedures to begin Phase II.
Phase
II of our work concerned identifying academic programs at
ISU, and identifying and developing appropriate criteria to
evaluate those programs.
We made a fundamental decision in
late January and the first few weeks of February -- that it
would be utterly impossible at Illinois state for a whole
variety of reasons that we won't go into, for this committee
to go off on a mountain on its own, and presuming there is
enough data, enough information fed to this committee, that
we could somehow assimilate all this data and make judgments
about high quality programs.
We studied this matter
closely.
We consulted with Bill Gorrell, with five college
Deans, with Greg Aloia of the Graduate School, Alan
Dillingham, and Provost David Strand.
I then personally
consulted with a number of other administrators and academic
leaders that I have known at Illinois State University over
the past thirty years.
It is simply not the case that
anyone at Illinois State has the data available to make
these judgments.
There is no way that you can assume that
by simply creating a committee, they can find the data and
then make the judgments.
We can go into that in great
detail.
There may be a time and occasion for that.
I
brought a notebook of materials here and we can have further
conversation on that.
We also made a decision as a
committee that given the time frame we were working in -- we
had one semester to finish our project
we had an
inadequate data system that we could not in any way fix in a
fast hurry.
The only possible way to do this and the most
meaningful way to do this would be in full consultation with
the college deans.
We chose two processes to get the
college deans directly involved.
Process one was a
conversation with each dean at a time regarding their
college and their programs, and the charge that we had, and
their understanding of how their programs
could be
understood in light of what we would be asking to do.
We
made it very clear to the deans that we would expect them to
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nominate the high quality programs in their respective
colleges, but we wanted to have a conversation with them at
the outset on matters of criteria, what their units were,
etc.
After these conversations, and other conversations
with administrators, we then proceeded to develop the
criteria of quality that I have now included in this packet.
The second phase of our work with the deans was to sharpen
that document -- it went through several revisions.
We
went through several versions of how to approach the
question of criteria.
We also spent a great deal of time
defining the academic units at Illinois state University.
We found that far more perplexing and confusing than we
thought at the outset.
One is reminded of the debate right
now in washington on "What is a gun?"
It seems rather
obvious what a gun in, but yet people can debate definitions
long and hard.
A lot of issues needed to be explored.
But, it was our approach to this process to work with the
deans in consultation to come up with a common set of
understood programs that they could put on paper that we
could recognize and understand.
We then asked the Deans
to nominate no more than approximately one third of the
programs in their respective colleges, given the program
units that they had identified, and given the criteria that
we provided them.
We then asked in each case for each
department or program area to create for us, to write a five
page narrative that spells out exactly how that program
fulfills the criteria that we established.
We would accept
also, but did not mandate it or require it, a supplemental
file of additional information.
This could be all kinds of
documents
statistical documents; narrative documents;
reviews that had been done in the past; whatever appropriate
documentation that could accompany the five page narrative.
We had all the narratives reproduced for all committee
members so that they could study the narratives for all the
nominated programs.
We had all the supporting data and
supplemental documents available at the President's Office
where we could then go and wade through all that material on
our own schedules.
So, everyone could study all the
documents -- the five page narratives -- and follow through.
We then met and determined that many of the programs -- half
or more -- did not have sufficient data, we had further
questions.
It was not that we had decided that these
programs should be rej ected or anything of the sort, we
simply did not have enough information.
We then formed
subcommi ttees, and teams, and individuals to go back to
those department
back to the people who wrote those
reports -- and get additional information.
We took a great
deal of time to thoroughly study every question that we had
on any program that came to our attention.
We kept at that
process.
At that time we accumulated another set of
documents of further information.
On the basis of this
information, we've begun a process of straw votes in which
we have determined where people are in terms in terms o f the
critical
number that
it would take to
fulfill
our
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requirement.
We are still working on those straw votes.
We have not finalized our votes -- though we are close to
it, and we will have that process finished before finals
next week, while we are still all around.
We will not
release those names of those programs until the full report
is finished and also accepted, and we feel the report itself
is finished.
So, we are not going to separate the list of
high qual i ty programs on one hand from a report on the
other.
They will come together as a total package.
And
we would hope to have that process done in the next week to
ten days.
That is our goal.
We are working hard to make
that goal.
That gives you a pretty quick overview of the issues that we
have faced.
There are many issues in this outline that we
can address, and I will not presume that all of it will make
sense right now, but I will try to answer your questions.
I want to close with a quote, and then open it up for
discussion:
Robert Hutchins, for many years the President
at the University of Chicago, once made the following
statement:
"I've been plagued all my life by two
obsessions:
the search for standards, and the search for
community."
That is the obsession of our committee.
We
want both.
We want to understand Illinois State as a
University of high quality.
And we want to do what we can
in the dialogue to help articulate and define the meaning of
that quality and how it can be achieved.
But we do not
want that to be done at the expense of some and the benefit
of others in the raw gains of zero sum politicking.
In
zero sum circumstances where we have a winner take all and
the losers pick up the rest.
In order to avoid that, we
want to build a system hopefully in our process of open and
full
consultation
and
deliberate
and
thoughtful
consideration of all concerned.
One of the things that I
have decided as chair of this committee -- when the process
is finished, there will be some programs that have been
nominated that will not be considered high quality.
I will
personally write a letter to all of those persons who wrote
those reports and I will meet face to face to review the
issues on why quality was not considered sufficient to merit
that designation.
I will certainly return for a full
review from this body on all matters of our deliberations
and the final results that we bring to the community at
large in the next two weeks.
QUESTIONS:
Senator White:
Going back a few years ago to the
President's Advisory Committee, one of the issues that we
discussed had to do with the process of what to do with the
redistribution or reallocation of funds across colleges.
Some colleges are better funded than others, and of higher
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quality.
It is hard for me to see , given what you have
presented to us tonight, where there is a mechanism for
moving money between colleges.
Some aspects of the
reallocation exercise will be hard to achieve.
Paul Baker:
You have raised a lot of issues there.
One
is that our committee has nothing to do with moving money.
We have addressed that early on in our report.
When you
read the full report, you will see that.
I do outline some
of those issues here.
Because, we had very long and
thoughtful conversations with the President on how to define
our task initially.
One of the problems at Illinois State
that we all recognize is that every academic unit has its
own history, and it has its times of development and change
peculiar to its own history.
So that there are moments in
the program where there is desperate need that needs to be
met because that is a vital program at this University, and
it mayor may not be high quality at the moment, but because
of circumstances, there are needs that must be met.
There
are other occasions and programs in their history when there
are new opportunities that did not exist say ten or fifteen
years ago, and this university to best fulfill its mission
in the future must respond to those opportunities when they
come.
So, given those realities, and the dynamics of many
programs across
the uni versi ty,
we do not
see the
designation of quality as a single indicator to move money
anywhere.
It
is one of many indicators
in the
priori tization of budget decisions that need to be made.
We do believe that there are occasions when it is justified
there is no point in doing all this work if there is
nothing to it.
But, this is not simply an exercise in
moving money.
It is one part of a larger set of strategic
planning processes that are on-going in the University.
Let me get back to the other part of your question.
There
is nothing in the exercise that we started that assures any
college that they will be designated as high quality.
We
simply started with the nominations that were provided for
us. We did build up, and in the outline that you see under
Roman Numeral IV. D., we provided at a critical point, after
those nominations came to us, we met with Provost Strand and
invited Greg Aloia from the Graduate Programs, and Alan
Dillingham from Undergraduate Programs,
to review all
nominations with two fundamental questions to be asked.
(1) Are there programs that are not on the list that belong
on the 1 ist because they are high qual i ty?
We assumed
that these three administrators are in a position to know if
there were in fact some oversights or omissions, or in fact
if a college had an abundance of high quality programs that
somehow got left off.
We wanted to know, are there any
high quality programs not yet mentioned that should be
considered?
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(2)
Are there programs on this list of lesser quality that
don't belong on the list?
We asked in a candid
conversation, what do you see in the quality of these
programs?
You might call that if you are a psychologist,
internal validity, or you might call that a check system,
but it was a deliberate oversight role to keep the process
honest, by those whom we hold accountable as academic
leaders.
We did not believe that process made sense for
the
whole
public,
but
we
did
believe
people
in
responsibility should give us thoughtful input, and that was
provided.
Senator Thomas:
Since you are here at Senate tonight,
answering questions about this, exactly what do you think
that your relationship to the Senate is?
Paul Baker:
Our committee was created by the President.
It is the President's committee.
We will serve at the
pleasure of the President.
But, any work that we create
should be carefully reviewed by the Senate.
Any
consequences that flow from our work should be carefully
reviewed by the Senate.
The extent to which actions are
taken from this that come into the oversight work of the
Senate, you have a role to take.
It is my point of view as
one who believes strongly in shared governance that the
better informed you are the better off you are.
I will do
my best to inform you of everything that we have done short
of the confidential work that the committee does.
You will
be fully informed of our understanding of what we have done.
Once you get the full report, I would say you could then ask
more questions.
I would then invite you to ask any
administrator at Illinois State University, and that is your
privilege, to know what consequences will flow from the
work, because we do not control that part of the assignment.
Senator Thomas:
I appreciate your comments saying that the
final report should come to the Senate -- whether they will
go to the Senate is another question.
My second question
is:
What exactly is the relationship between the Baker
Commission or whatever you want to call it, and all these
other things that we have had -- the Strategic Plan; the
Strategic Vision; Academic Plan; Mission Statements; etc.
What is the relationship of the Baker Commission?
Paul Baker:
Shailer?

Where are you picking up these buzz words,

Senator Thomas:
How do you see your committee's work in
light of all the buzz words currently going around?
Paul Baker:
This committee does have a relationship to PQP
-- Productivity, Quality, and Priorities, insofar as Phase
III is a time when universities, throughout the state, not
just Illinois State, are in a position now to reallocate
9

resources internally.
There are opportunities for the
University through Phase III of PQP for internal planning
processes for some reallocation of money.
So, in that
sense, this committee's work is tied to Phase III of PQP.
Early on,
in one of our long conversations with the
President, there was the consideration that should this be
tightly tied to the Fiscal Year 1995 Budget?
We felt, and
the President agreed with us, that it was simply an
impossible task.
We couldn't finish our work in time to
make sense out of FY95.
The work of preparing that budget
had to be ongoing immediately, and we could not get our work
done until the end of the semester.
You will read this in
the final report, we do not see this work as having a very
strong connection at all to Fiscal Year 1995.
Rather, it
has a longer range prospect over several fiscal years being
put in place as a planning process.
So, it is part of
PQP, but not a major part of the 1995 Fiscal Year Budget.
In terms of strategic planning, that particular concept and
idea, certainly you cannot avoid some aspect of strategic
planning in our work.
We did study carefully and closely
the strategic plan that was written here a few years ago,
but our work is not directl y related to that work and we do
not see ourselves as a subcommittee of the strategic
planning process or anything of the sort.
Though clearly,
strategic planning never stops in any university.
Senator Thomas:
I am confused about what part your
commission plays in the '. larger scheme of things at ISU.
Over the last several years we have had the strategic plan,
the academic plan, the mission statements, the vision
statement
there has been a tremendous amount of effort
going on.
I am curious where your commission fits into all
this?
President Wallace:
In the document that was circulated
last Fall, we showed that we had begun a three year program
to address PQP concerns at Illinois State University.
Our
Strategic Plan identified our goals; and then our Budget
followed these goals.
This is Phase III of the PQP
process and it is all tied together.
I will be glad to
send you a copy of that document.
We were criticized by
the Illinois Board of Higher Education last time, because we
had cut administrative costs, we had not addressed academic
quality enhancement.
We had two per cent of our budget to
reallocate in Phase III of PQP where measures of quality in
departments were to be used for academic enhancement.
Senator Patterson:
Programs that you do not find to be
high quality, how much danger are those programs going to be
in?
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Paul Baker:
That is a really good question.
Is this
really about the two thirds of programs that did not make
the list, or about the one third that made the list.
Were
we really set up to do a search for the losers rather than a
search for the winners.
I understand that mentality,
because it has been approached to me maybe fifty times with
some degree of hostility every time since I took this
assignment.
Because there is a lot of fear that the real
issue is not making the list and then being in jeopardy.
I
can only speak about what we have done as a committee, and
say that when you get the full report we will welcome your
further scrutiny.
We believe as a committee that our
assignment is exclusively to identify quality programs and
appropriate criteria that would go with quality and
appropriate supporting evidence that would meet those
cri teria.
We have done our best to hold tight to that
assignment.
We have negotiated an understanding with the
President and an understanding generally in our work, that
the issues of prioritizing are not limited to quality, but
issues of need and opportunity are also legitimate issues
for the prioritizing of a budget, because the enhancement of
the university community as a whole and the enhancement of
these programs should not simply be one short list only.
So, we have done our best to articulate those issues and
that will be available in the report when you read it.
We "
do not have any word to say about those programs not on the
list, except the following:
It is very obvious, and it is
in the report, that there are many many programs at Illinois
State University of genuine high quality that may not be on
that list, but for some various set of reasons did not make
that list.
There are lots of high quality faculty
throughout this university and lots of groups of high
quality faculty doing very fine work.
We do not want our
work to be perceived to be identifying only those doing
quality work versus the rest.
That would be a false
reading of what our work is about.
We are fully aware of
those high quality faculty and I can assure you of some
other things here in general.
In my career at Illinois
State serving on a whole variety of committees, doing a
whole variety of opportunities to serve with fellow faculty
members in all kinds of settings, I have never had the
occasion to work with faculty with such high integrity and
professionalism.
When their own programs were under
scrutiny and they were asked to leave -- and there well may
be when our work is over, people in the very room discussing
the matters will see their programs not on that final list.
We set up very stringent guidelines, so that any time a
department's
program
was
under
review,
under
no
circumstances was that faculty member present for any of
that discussion.
If there were any questions about that
program, they were not to be addressed to the committee
member, but they were to be addressed to the Chairperson or
some other person.
That would not be a part of our
discussion or our deliberation.
This has been tough work,
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and it has not been easy for faculty to stand out in the
hallway
for
twenty-five
minutes
while
the
committee
discussed their department.
But, we have been doing it
the best we can to keep the integrity in the process.
We
cannot assure that other things will not happen,
except it
has never been our assignment, and we are not a part of any
process that would identify the lesser programs.
Senator Jerich:
I have a question for clarification.
On
Page two, under criteria of academic quality, is that a
complete list?
Paul Baker:
It is never intended as a complete list.
It
is always intended as a partial list in both cases.
One of
the things that we knew from day one in our work is that we
have lots of programs that are radically different.
They
have distinct purposes, they have distinct audiences, some
are graduate level, some are undergraduate level, some are
dealing primarily with certain kinds of tasks that are very
different than other kinds of programs.
Therefore, we
could not come up with a single list of criteria and
indicators in any simple mechanical fashion.
We had many
lists.
We had many efforts to try to delineate all of the
items that we would want to consider.
But in our final
judgment, we knew that there was enough uniqueness in each
program at ISU or enough distinctiveness among the different
programs that we wanted to allow each program to state their
own case as best they could.
These are indicators among
many that they could have.
Senator Jerich:
Can I make the assumption that these are
salient in nature.
For example, under criteria it says
published
scholarship,
can
that
be
interpreted
as
educational research as contrasted to someone who gets a one
to two page article published in a non-refereed journal.
Paul Baker:
I understand your distinction.
We struggled
with that issue in a variety of ways.
We decided early on
that we would not set up a uniform standard of DFSC
deliberations, as though there is one standard for all
departments.
If in fact, the author of a narrative
indicates that faculty in that particular department are
reading papers at prestigious meetings on a regular basis,
perhaps those papers are being publ ished in proceedings,
perhaps those papers go on to be published later.
That
would be highly valid information to note.
It would be
equally important to know if somebody is publishing in a
refereed journal.
But, we let each author argue the case
for the strength of their program, always considering
pUblications as well as proceedings and papers at meetings
as appropriate documentation of scholarship.
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Senator Razaki:
Professor Baker, I don't know you, but I
have made inquiries about you and have been · told that you
are a person of great integrity.
But, you said that your
committee was a creation of the President.
I want to know
whose philosophy and viewpoints have been reflected in the
cri teria and decision-making process.
I am asking that
because it is easy for me to oppose the President and
administration, but it is a not easy to oppose the
recommendations of my colleagues, especially if they have
integrity -- unless of course they do not have any.
Paul Baker:
Thank you for the kind compliment.
Let me
say again, and I don't want to defer questions by simply
saying, "Wait until you get the report."
When I say that,
I am saying, "Please scrutinize me later.
and
Ask those
questions again."
The committee took a lot of time -when the President asked me to do this back in November, he
asked me to come by his office, and I went by and talked
with him, and he asked me to chair a committee and he
explained what he was going to do.
At that time he had a
draft of a memo he had been working on that he wanted me to
study.
I said, "There is one condition if I assume this
responsibility, and that is the committee will have an
opportunity
to
work
with
you
to
draft
the
final
understanding of what we are going to do."
The Presiden:t
was very gracious about that and he said, "OK, no problem."
The committee was then selected, and we met with him and we
again looked over the copy of the memo that he had for us.
We thought a lot about it, and there was a lot of give and
take in that.
There is a document, dated February 2, 1994,
we published in an open letter to the campus stating exactly
how we defined our mission.
That guides our work.
There was a negotiating process with the President to make
sure that it was a do-able task, and a meaningful task.
When we had our first meeting in January, after the
President met with us in December, we took our first thirty
minutes to ask one question, "Why in the hell are we here in
the first place?
What are we doing here?"
None of us
are there because we believe that anything the President
wants we will gladly do.
The President has given us great
freedom to conduct our work, but he has not controlled the
process at all.
President Wallace:
The final document will go to
President's Advisory Committee and will then come to
Senate.
The Chairs of the Academic Senate Committees
on the President's Advisory Committee, and they may take
document to their committees of the Senate.

the
the
are
the

I appreciate the challenge of your
Senator Walker:
assignment.
I want to ask several questions of the
My interpretation of how you viewed this
committee.
assignment was that it is primarily to establish what
quality is?
Is that correct.
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Paul Baker:
One of our assignments involves establishing
appropriate criteria of academic quality.
Yes.
Senator Walker:
Of secondary nature to that,
is
recognizing what programs are quality.
Is that secondary
or primary?
Paul Baker:
That would also be a primary function.
To
identify programs that meet that criteria with supporting
evidence.
Senator Walker:
There are three ways in which a program
need;
could acquire resources for program enhancement:
Is your report addressing only
opportunity; and quality.
quality?
Paul Baker:

Yes.

Senator Walker:

Not need?

Paul Baker:
Again, let me go back to conversations in
January.
I don't mean to be long-winded about this, but it
is important.
When the memo went out December 16th, with
an open invitation to faculty and everyone at the University
to give us their input on criteria issues, all the work we
were going to do, we got a flood of mail.
I studied all of
that mail.
One of the issues obvious to our community at
large here, was the absurdity of taking only criteria in a
narrow sense of quality to drive budget decisions.
There
are all kinds of combinations where you have a lot of
variables that are appropriate to understand academic
enhancement.
So, we began to sort that out, and we
decided that it was beyond our task and our capacity to look
at all these variables.
We kept our focus to academic
quality.
Senator Walker:
You made the statement that you would not
put your committee on a mountain and try to look for
quality.
I appreciate that.
At the same time, you had to
do that somewhat in order to complete your assignment.
You
made the statement that you pretty much took the nom i ~ations
of the Deans as to what they considered to be 4uality
programs and I assume you tried to fit that in co the model
that your committee had developed.
Paul Baker:
In every case, every nomination has to be
Yes.
Every program is
justified under close scrutiny.
getting thoroughly scrutinized.
Senator Walker:
In any case, did you pull up programs that
were not recommended by the deans?
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Paul Baker:
Yes.
We had one program which is Speech
Pathology and Audiology
that has been recommended by the
Provost Office.
Senator Walker:
is finished.

How long will it be before your committee

Paul Baker:
This phase of our work, and getting our final
report finished, we hope to get done wi thin the next ten
days.
Senator Walker:
Does that mean that the committee will be
disestablished at that point?
Paul Baker:
We will have finished our report.
We will
meet with the President and if he has other things for us
......
There is one piece of unfinished work, which we
will have to discuss with the President.
That is that the
President also wants to know as much as he can about the
supporting units at Illinois State University that will also
help enhance academic quality.
We looked at that issue, we
had a subcommittee working on that project, and we put that
on hold because our other job was simply too large to do it.
We decided as a committee that our primary target or
responsibility would be the academic quality programs and
that phase of our work.
We have not finished the second
assignment that we were asked to do.
Senator Walker:
You do not envision this committee playing
any role in the assignment of reallocations to high quality
programs?
Paul Baker:

We have not been assigned budgetary functions.

Senator Walker:
That process is ongoing with the Deans,
for reallocating dollars to programs?
Paul Baker:
It cannot be done with these programs, because
they have not been identified yet -- other than those the
Deans have nominated.
But those nominations are not the
final word on the quality programs.
President Wallace:
Those programs that have been nominated
will then be nominated for enhancement dollars.
The
Department Chair and the Dean will work with the faculty on
a proposal -- those proposals will then come to the Provost
Office.
Perhaps a program not on their list where there is
great opportunity and need, can benefit.
If your program
is nominated by the committee as being very high quality, it
will be a candidate for further enhancement.
It will be
tied in with the Phase III of PQP.
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senator Walker:
These programs which have been identified
by the Deans and which meet the criteria of the quality
enhancement committee -- are not guaranteed the dollars;
some other body is going to delegate those dollars based on
the proposals that come forward.
Is it at that point that
dollars will cross colleges?
Do the dollars stay within a
college?
President Wallace:

Yes, dollars can cross colleges.

Senator Walker:
Who is making the decision as to whether
the proposals generated by the high quality programs are
funded or not?
President Wallace:
What I described as nominations being
part of the curriculum budget process, would mean that those
programs nominated may apply for those funds and during the
process it could occur.
It would be part of the FY 96
Budgeting process.
Senator Walker:
And the deans allocate their dollars, or
does it come out of program review, or what?
My point is,
we have identified high quality programs; they send forward
a proposal to the Provost Office; and then the Provost makes
a decision who gets the reallocated dollars?
President Wallace: The Deans would have input on that.
We
are talking about $2 million dollars out of $170 million
dollars.
Senator Walker:
How does a program of need and opportunity
get nominated into the process?
Do they nominate
themselves; does the Dean do it?
President Wallace:
I would say the College, the Department
or the Dean should nominate them.
This is a separate list from the quality
Senator Walker:
The college could have another list of
enhancement list?
nominations?
President Wallace:
I don't see that happening.
For
example, your college has the Telecommunications Program.
Senator Walker:
program is a major?

One last question,

your definition of

Paul Baker:
No.
One of the biggest controversies of our
committee and one of the on-going issues that is far from
resolved at this University is what is an academic program.
One approach is to simply say the department is the unit.
Others would say distinct programs inside a d epartment.
We
had three options as our work unfolded -- those occasions
when
you
have
two
programs
inside
a
department:
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Sociology/Anthropology;
Geography/Geology;
many such
cases, one department, two programs, so you have intraprograms.
You have cases where it is a unified system -one
department,
one
program:
Biology;
History;
Philosophy.
Then you have programs that do not fit into
any program as such, but cross many departments:
The MBA
program in Business.
There is no simple way to define
program.
There is some degree of complexity in how then
best to approach this.
In our work, we deliberated with
e ach college Dean on which of the three categories were
appropriate to them, so if you look under those categories,
you will see that they say, two or more programs inside the
same department; unified programs in department; and those
that are inter-departmental.
So, academic programming and
how to configure an administrative unit around it varies
enormously across this university, as it does in every
university.
Senator Walker:
is?

I still don't understand what a program

Paul Baker:
A program is a designated unit that the
college deans have presented to us in their deliberations in
which there is a core of faculty serving a group of students
with a particular curriculum -- typically it involves either
an undergraduate program or a graduate program, and there
are several degrees or majors attached to it.
Senator Walker:
It has nothing to do with the Board of
Regents or Illinois Board of Higher Education definition of
a program?
Senator Levy:
I wanted to clarify, the things that are
underlined, have been nominated?
Paul Baker:
They have been nominated only.
The College
Deans nominated those programs.
We are now reviewing all
of those nominations.
Senator Levy:

Are these the only programs?

Paul Baker:
The only exception was speech Pathology and
Audiology, which was nominated by the Provost's Office.
Senator Levy:
In your criteria for making the decision,
how did you determine the satisfaction of students?
Paul Baker:
There are various indicators that some
department's have and some program units
there is
variation on that.
Several departments have alumni
surveys that they do on their own, some have exit interviews
and exit surveys that they do with their graduates.
There
was a survey that was done University wide -- that has been
around a few years.
We had that data as well.
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senator Levy:
Did you compare these programs with other
similar programs at other universities at all to determine
the quality?
Paul Baker:
No we didn't .
That issue evolved in the
guiding of these documents and many narratives and many
supporting documents inform us in a variety of ways of the
comparable quality of this program relative to other
programs throughout the state and the nation.
Senator Levy:
How did you
faculty/student interaction?

determine

the

wide-spread

Paul Baker:
Again, there were a variety of ways in which
this was indicated to us.
They could be teaching
strategies that they are developing, they could be spe c i al
clubs that are formed, they could be newsletters a nd
information that is acquired, they could be collaborative
work with research that faculty and
students conduct
together -- a variety of ways were indicated.
Senator Lind:
My question would more appropriately be
directed to President Wallace.
There are clearly
connections with the PQP process,
and regardless of
Professor Baker's
intent,
the outcome of the
Baker
Commission Report may be used to indicate programs for
elimination with respect to the PQP proposal.
You have
indicated tonight that you are willing to bring those
programs to the Senate for review, are you also willing to
go on record and say that you will bring them to the Senate
for approval.
President Wallace:
Every program targeted for elimination
must come to the Senate for review.
Senator Jagodzinski:
Professor Baker, you mentioned
subcommi ttees of your group had begun work on examining
support programs . .
Paul Baker:
We began at one phase in our work in early
February thinking that we could simultaneously work on the
academic programs as well as the support systems.
It was
apparent to us early on that it was an overwhelming task at
hand. We could not handle both, it was just too much to do.
The beginning phase of that was through Jerry Cain in the
Provost's Office to acquire for us a complete list of every
administrative unit at Illinois State University and we went
through that total list and determined those programs that
we considered support programs, and there were various
kinds.
So we did begin by collecting that list and
studying it and taking some time to review it.
What we
encountered was the realization that it is extraordinarily
complex and there is no simple way to handle that issue, and
18

we have not pursued that pS a final set of deliberations at
this time.
senator Jagodzinski:
Do you think that your committee as
it is presently constituted will address support programs?
Paul Baker:
We will have a conversation with the President
after this first report is issued.
At the issuing of our
first report, it will not be addressed in that first report.
President Wallace:
For support programs, we did not ask
for identification of highest quality.
We asked for
identification of programs of highest need to the academic
program.
We are not trying to identify top quality support
programs.
Senator Bull:

Could we put a time limit on this report?

Chairperson Schmaltz:
This is not even an information
item, we are still under Administrators' Remarks.
Senator Walker:
This report in its final form will be
presented to the Senate for review?
I have mixed emotions
about what I want to say here.
It is an academic issue,
because we are defining the quality of these programs in
some respect.
Does that mean that the Senate needs to
approved, endorse, or do something with it?
I would like
for us to address the issue before the fact and not after
the fact, like we did with- the Vision statement.
This is
an issue of academic quality.
Chairperson Schmaltz:
The Chair has thought about this.
As both Dr. Baker and President Wallace have pointed out, it
is his committee.
I have not idea what he is going to do
wi th this report, other than if a program is going to be
deleted, if that is one of the outcomes, that will have to
go through the Senate.
I have no idea what we are going to
do with it.
Senator Walker:
When the Senate receives the final Paul
Baker Committee Report, will it be sent to the Academic
Affairs Committee, or will it just be received and everyone
gets a copy?
Chairperson Schmaltz:
I would hope that the Executive
Committee would discuss that issue.
We as the Senate could
pass a Sense of the Senate Resolution saying it is a
wonderful report.
Senator Walker:
I think we use Sense of the Senate
Resolutions too darn much.
I don't know what we are to do
with this.
We should have the Academic Affairs Committee
consider it, it is an academic issue.
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President Wallace:
What I am asking for is that the
senate review it, and give me a report on it.
The
committees of the Senate ought to be reviewing it.
Senator Thomas:
I just wanted to reaffirm something that
President Wallace stated earlier this evening, that "Any
program targeted for elimination will have to come to the
Senate for approval."
Senator Wallace:
Let me point out, when we discussed this
before, that action has to begin at the departmental level.
We cannot force a department to do that.
The mechanism
doesn't begin with the administration, it begins with the
department.
Senator Walker:
According to the Disestablishment Policy,
it does not have to begin at the department level.
The
internal process as stated in the old disestablishment
procedures was set up so that most recommendations come that
route -- bottom up.
But, there was a clause in Section II
of the current policy that reads:
"A proposal (including
rationale) to either disestablish an academic unit or review
the level of support necessary to maintain its viability may
be submitted by any member or members of the university
community."
Chairperson Schmaltz:
That is the point -- that has not
come through.
No department or program at Illinois State
University can be eliminated unless it currently comes up
from the bottom.
One of the tasks of the Rules Committee
was to rewrite the Disestablishment Policy, by which the
University could deal with an external
request
for
elimination of a program.
Senator Johnson:
There is a draft of a revised
disestablishment policy.
That draft from an ad hoc
committee has been to the Graduate School and all the
College Curriculum Committees for review.
I imagine it
will be coming to the Senate for approval fairly soon.
Senator Thomas:
Point of order, I thought that I had the
floor.
Here it is May, and again we are coming up with the
discussion of elimination of programs that will be due in
July.
We are doing this at the last minute again, like
last year.
Students are leaving campus, and this very
much affects them.
President Wallace:

That has no part of the Baker report.

President Wallace had no additional administrators' remarks.
PROVOST STRAND had no remarks.
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senator Insel:
May I ask which of the nominees for the
pilot Implementation Committee was chosen by the Provost.
Provost strand:
We have not yet received all the
nominations from the colleges, so the committee has not been
finalized.
Senator stearns:
I have a question for President Wallace
about the PQP Process.
In the Regency Report put out by
the Board of Regents, it stated that four programs from ISU
were under scrutiny:
the Master of Music, the Master of
Music Performance, the Ed.D. in Art and the Ph.D. in
Biological Sciences.
"The Universities and Board are
continuing
to
evaluate
the
identified
programs.
Recommendations will be offered to the Board in July.
The
Board will take action at that time."
What does that
action have to do relative to our disestablishment policy?
President Wallace:
Those four programs did not need Senate
action because they were not recommended for elimination.
What is going on now is that the Board of Higher Education
has asked the Board of Regents to reconsider those programs
that the IBHE recommended for elimination and the University
didn't recommend for elimination.
Senator Walker:
that .

will you be sure that Senator Thomas knows

Chairperson Schmaltz:
When you say that the Senate has
already acted on those programs, what did you mean by that.
President Wallace:
You acted one year ago only on programs
that had been recommended for elimination.
Senator Borg:
These are not the same programs.
ago, we followed the disestablishment policy
elimination of different programs.

One year
for the

Provost Strand:
The Board of Higher Education has also
asked respective governing boards to examine the programs in
Phase II of PQP.
Two of them are in the Music Department.
The Board of Regents will not take any action to eliminate
those programs prior to the time that those programs come
before the Academic Senate, if they in fact, do come before
the Academic Senate.
Senator Walker:
The action the Senate took, was that we
recommend ed that these programs not be eliminated.
VICE PRESIDENT FOR STUDENT AFFAIRS, WILLIAM GUROWITZ had no

remarks.
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ACTION ITEMS
1.

New Student Code of Conduct

Senator Cowsert, Chairperson of Student Affairs Committee:
First I would like to advise everyone that we had two
lengthy meetings of the Student Affairs Committee and we had
at least five students sit in on each meeting and one
student at large who came in and spoke to us.
We had good
discussion
and
everyone
had
opportunity
for
input.
Everyone should have received a copy of the most recent
document in their packets.
The underlined areas are the
ones where we made changes.
I would like to point out a
few of the maj or changes.
On Page 4, under Student
I.D. IS, what we did with that was make it so students would
not be required to carry them at all times.
Another change
was on Page 2, under Jurisdiction, and that change was just
rei terating and making sure that the amendment offered by
Senator King was included in there.
On Page One,
Preamble,
the sentence added:
"The purpose of this Code
is, in part, to provide an educational framework for
students so that they may make responsible choices regarding
their behavior as members of the academic community." This
is really an important point, because it seems that some
people have the impression that this Code is going to be
used as a way to "get the students," and provide "more rules
for us to live by." This sentence explains that the Code is
to provide an environment conducive to education.
The
student at large who came and talked to our committee really
made us think about this.
This code is not to be used to
get students -- it will be more to protect students from
other students, or use this code to protect students from
each other.
XXV-125

Senator Cowsert:
Code of Conduct.

I move that we approve the New Student
(Second, King)

Senator Wilner:
When I was in Executive Committee and
this item was put on the Agenda, I made these remarks to the
Student Affairs Committee.
I was fearful that we would not
have enough time to fully discuss this.
I was continually
told that we would have a full Senate period to discuss this
because this was the only item on the Agenda.
After what I
view as an abuse of opening remarks, I feel as if the energy
that students would put into this important issue is kind of
drained.
XXV-126

Senator Wilner:
Levy)

I move to table this motion.
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(Se cond,

Senator Cowsert:
Point of information.
How many times
has this been on the Agenda as an Action Item already?
Answer:

Twice

Motion failed.
XXV-127

Senator Levy:
I have an amendment to offer on Page Two,
second line, after the statement:
"Students attending a
function
as
an
official
representative
of
the
University ..... " add:
"(Examples of "Official Representatives" students
serving on academic or athletic teams and students
involved in off campus internships.)
(Levy Amendment/Second, Razaki)
Senator Levy:
I want to clarify who would be considered
"Official Representatives" of the University.
I don't
think it is clear enough for students to know when they are
acting officially for the University and when they are not.
A short list of examples lets people know.
Linda Timm said
that off-campus internships do count, and I think students
need to be aware of this.
XXV-128

Senator Zervic:
to the beginning:

I would like to add a friendly amendment
"such as, but not limited to"

Amendment accepted as friendly.
Senator Nelsen:
Is a student who is a member of a team an
official representative of the University by definition.
Senator Levy:

That is what I was told by Linda Timm.

Linda Timm:
Yes.
They are an official representative of
the University as a member of the team.
Senator Nelsen:
An Official Representative indicates that
the person has powers to represent the University, make
decisions, or operate on behalf of the University.
I am
not sure that playing a game of basketball, or baseball, or
football
gives
them
that
power
to
be
official
representatives.
If a student is on an
Senator Bull:
Point of order.
If
athletic team, they are representing the University.
they are acting in an inappropriate manner, everyone from
the University is affected.
Senator Jerich:
Could we have
Perhaps official could be amended.
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the

wording

clarified.

senator Levy:

The word Official was already in there.

Senator Johnson:
Is there
"official" has to be in there?

any

reason

why

the

word

The word official came from the original
Linda Timm:
committee.
No one is here from that committee tonight.
Senator Razaki:
I was go i ng
amendment to remove that word. .
Senator Levy:

to

propose

a

friendly

I have no problem with that.

Chairperson Schmaltz:
The amendment began after the word
University -- "Official" occurs before that word.
Senator Zervic:

Could we amend Senator Levy's amendment to

say . . . . . . .

Chairperson Schmaltz:
No.
She would have to withdraw her
amendment and start allover again.
Senator Onken:
If we do take out the word "official," what
would be a university representative?
Chairperson Schmaltz:
Senator Onken,
with the word "official" yet?

we are not dealing

Senator Levy:
I think she is saying, if we approve my
amendment and then go back and drop the word "official,"
does that make my amendment unnecessary?
XXV-129
Senator Bull:
I move that we vote on the original motion.
Move the previous question.
(Second, Johnson)

Motion carried .
XXV-127
Vote on the Levy Amendment carried.

Page Two - Third Line - Second Sentence:
After the words: as an official representative of the
University (add):
(Such as, but not limited to students serving on
academic or athletic teams and students involved in off
campus internships.)
XXV-130
Senator Razaki:
I would like to move another amendment:
"to strike the words "an official" from the second sentence.
(Second, Weber)
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senator Lind:
I am not sure why we are making such a big
deal out of the word "official" when it still contradicts
the first page where it says "all ISU students."
We still
have a contradiction between all ISU students and just plain
representatives.
That still makes it in violation of the
ISU constitution.
XXV-131

Senator Patterson:
Lentz)

I move the previous question.

(Second,

Motion carried on a voice vote.
Vote on Razaki (Weber) amendment carried on a voice vote.
(Remove "an official" from the second sentence)
Sena tor Weber:
On Page 4, C. 2., it says "Students must
present their Illinois State University Student 10 cards on
request to any University official who must identify
her/himself as such."
I am not sure I know what an
official University official is.
If I cash a check at
Cashier's and they ask for an 10, are they a University
Official?
When students are taking exams, and you ask
for an 10, is that precluded by this type of thing.
I
don't understand what a university official is.
Senator Cowsert:
We discussed that and the added part "who
must identify her/himse~~ as such." was added to clarify
that.
Senator Weber:
Linda Timm:
authority.

What is a university official?

Anyone vested by the Board of Regents with such

Senator Muzumdar:
I commend Senator Lind for her
constitutionality question.
Secondly, on Page TWo, under
the Jurisdiction section,
which reads, "Students may also
be subject to disciplinary sanctions for the actions of
their guests which violate University regulations."
Senator Cowsert:
been deleted.

That sentence is in brackets -- it has

Senator Razaki:
Back to the question of who is a
University official.
If a student is cashing a check, can
I walk up to that student and ask for their IO?
Chairperson Schmaltz:
I would assume not because that is
not part of your capacity as a university official.
Senator Razaki:

Well, I am a university official.
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Linda Timm:
A university official is an individual vested
by the Board of Regents.
I think the question is not so
much who is a university official,
but when it is
appropriate to ask for a student's I. D.'
Again, if a
student was cashing a check, what reason would a faculty
member have for asking for their I. D.
If a student is
taking an exam, a faculty member may ask for his/her I.D.
Senator Razaki:
If a group of students was getting rowdy
outside a classroom, and I walked outside and asked them to
quiet down, and they questioned my authority, could I ask
for their I. D.
Parliamentarian Cohen:
capacity of the University.

It

has

to

be

in

an

official

Senator Zervic:
On Page Two, III.
General Regulations.
A.
4.
I am wondering if it is not a typographical error.
"Students should not possess or use firearms or explosive
devices on University property or at any University related
function."
then it says again:
"Students shall not
possess explosive devices,"
Senator Cowsert:
deleted.

The second "explosive devices" should be

Senator Perez:
As a member of the committee, I don't have
it on my list as being in there twice.
The second one
should be deleted -- it is a typo.
Senator Patterson:
I object to the consideration of this
entire document.
This thing has been here all semester
long.
People have been amending it, every time it has been
brought up.
There were meetings with the Student Affairs
Committee to express your views on what should
or should
not be amended.
Chairperson Schmaltz:
That is out of order.
The
appropriate thing for a senator to do if he feels as you do,
is to move the previous question.
This cuts off debate
instantly.
XXV-132
Senator Patterson:
(Second, Giacomini)
Roll Call Vote:
majority)
XXV-133
Senator King:
would I ike to
sentence with:

I
21 yes;

On Page 4,
offer and

move
14 no.

the

previous

question.

(failed -- not a 2/3

C. 2., regarding I. D. cards, I
amendment to replace the first
(Second , . Levy)
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"students must present their Illinois state University
student I.D. cards on request to a University official
who must identify her/himself as such and who serves in
a capacity. which deems it necessary them to check I. D.
cards."
senator King: ··
ambiguity.

I

think this would clarify questions and

Senator Walker:
This amendment adds
document.
It is just extra verbiage.

nothing

to

the

Parliamentarian Cohen:
Senate Bylaw I. 4. is very specific
about amendments at the decision stage -- they are supposed
to be in writing.
Senator Onken:
I agree with Senator Razaki's amendment.
This amendme,nt will protect students.
Senator Levy:
Different university officials serve
different cap~cities to request it at different times.

in

XXV-134
Senator strickland:
I would suggest a friendly amendment
to use the word "requires" instead of deems it necessary.

Senator Nelsen:
Would this amendment preclude a faculty
member from asking a student for an I. D. card, if the
faculty member thought they were not an ISU student.
Do I
as a faculty member have the right to ask for an I. D. card.
If I walked into the Bone Student Center and saw a group of
students there and had reason to wonder if someone belonged
on campus, 'could. I make a request for the person to show an
I. D. card.
Senator King:

No.

Vote on King/Levy Amendment

21/16

Page
Sentence)

Part

4,

section

C.,

(motion carried)
2

(Replace

the

First

"students must present their Illinois state University
student I., D. cards on request to a University official
who must identify her/himself as such and who serves in
a capacity which requires them to check I. D. cards."
Senator Bo~g: -"' : At the top of page three, fourth line down,
what is the subj ect of the verb "tends"?
I think it
should be tend.
Senator Weber: " "Such acts may
should be "ten~" r with no s.
'"
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tend."

The verb

Th i s wa s~(a typographica r : e rr~i.

Senator Perez:

-.
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NO INFORMATION I TEMS
COMMUNICATIONS
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....."
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Senator Patterson-: I would suggest that we':-attend committee
meetings and not amend the document · on :t he " f loor of the
Senate.
tc¥.'+>1'v;"
",,,,,,,-::;,,,;;:,~.

Chairperson 'Schmaltz: "
If you ·~.rr e g criff.g "' to offer an
amendment on ' tl'fe floor of the Senate, i f " -yo't:t!r bring it in
writing to the "meeting and giv~~" > all se rt~tO'rs ,a: copy .
That
makes it a lot simpler. ~',-,
Or 1 if ' you ' ~i)-hounce at the
information item stage,that you intend t tl' ame'n d this at the
action item stage .
Your communicatYort':' i s - ~~rl taken.
Senator Raz<;iki:
This is t he way the
hasn I t seen ianyt hing yet.

Se na:t-~ ' ''works,

COMMITTEE REPORTS

-.
-...'-'"

ACADEMIC-' AFFAIRS

COMMITTEE

and he

-"'~'"

- . Senator

....~

...." ........, ...,
~.

Kei t h '_Stearns
had no
i

report. , .'

,.,-"

. ,,""'t

ADMINISTRATIVE AFF AIRS '"COMMITTEE ";' No report •.. . ' BUDGET ' COMMITTEE - -Senator Wayne Nelsen ' called
meeting "following 'Senat 'e adjournment . .-::~}:_
.~" . ''-.t- .

a

short

<-.

FACULTY AFFAIRS COMMI TTEE ~ Senator Khai i d --F-azaki, called a
brief meet i ng of , t he c ommittee foll ow ing S-ena te.
RULES

COMMITTEE

-

'"

Senator Zoevera Hayes,

called a meeting

after Senate.
STUD~NT

AFFA~ RS

COMMITTEE

-Bena 1;. o ~ ' .1e nn4:fe:r:-;·~e-owsert,
,~.~, "

said

her c ommittee ' d eserVed a-.. va-c at i on ·.~::':.. ':d
MOTION .. 'l'O ·· W

OURN

xxv- 13 5 ..---,~ ..".".,."-.-.,,

]':ou:,rn: ·

I move to .. "ad
",{Second , Thomas)
Sena t017,,· Ra-zak-i··:
Motion oarri<?d",o:E a voice vote . ~"-'t Adidemic ~ $enate adj ourned
,..".,;
"~
.",~ . , ";' .
'at 9:35 n.
... m·_ l .. ·..·. ·"
l:'
I'
. ...

. ~ > ·._.~~ r" ~_~.__ ...~
~

",'-",",_

-F,OR·'l'BE.. · AC14lEMIC SENATE
I._' c. ,.

_

SUSAN M; .. -Wl-JiQUIP, SECRETARY
.

~
•

.- -, . •.,..,.... -'

~. ' ~'- '

•. .. <t~

'

...... 0 ... '

. t~"· ·,:--"",

."'.. ,.... ',.

,~."

D.~e:

I

on

A((DDMCE

BORG
BRUZZINI
BULL
CLMI::iERT

tiUtt l V IAJ.\jL\j

~~.,~

/",

..

uJ:,.K..LUi

YES
YES

YES
NO
YES

PRS.

YES
NO
YES
ABSTlI IN

YES

YES

_~- ·c ..

P
EXOJSED

P
P

PA'l'.t;L

P
P

'"

..

~

-

'fi:S

-----

,", ' 00"" .''f;;$ .. ~ }

:::"YES
NO

YES
YES
YES
YES
YES

'

¥ ,'

JE::i

YE::l

0
,

"

..

..
.-

NO

NO
YES

YFS
..YF.S,

: ~ ,;,

YES
YES

vp_~

. . ..

'

.. ,.

,

..

..

; ./,

-

"

.~

c,

..

..

.. ';., e:-

.

"~

..

.

. ,..\

..,
'I"W"

.,

..No.

'<.

)

w,s

.

,,,..,,,

_YES

j'

"
~-

.-

..,

", "

.• ' '>-

,.

.....
,.,."

. .'"',.

,

,, '

-'

. '

.....

N()

AR.~

"

~I -

,'

.

------ - - - - - -

--:---~

,-

,

------ ....------- -----YES
YES
YES
YES

.

;

.

NO

YES
_.: NO ,,-

':--

~

.,

-

' '_""T,

~

..

'"

.~

.

"T,",
.,~

YES.

-

, llr\

"ARs

...1I..DC..

--------- ... ------ -----~,

v

P

P
P
P
P
P

YES.;;,. ,, ' ...... .,-YES
NO-' ~,~
~YES c
~

YES.

YES
YES

ABS

-:::-~--

YES

,..

."

,

.c.:. " " "..!::L

33 "'fE:

,.. I," ~~'
- , -- ~

.

-- .-.
YES'

"

.~

..

"

''''"yrt

"'!"'''''.''.

21YS
14NO
5 A

.

"

.. -.

-

,-""

'"

t".,

'

~.

"r', ·,

. ~

,

~",'

-

- ... -

' ,-.Ii'

'

0'. ,,-'.""
,_,:..1-0;. ... .

,~

- ....... ", ""

"

' ,<- "..,

YES

YES
NO

NO
NO

,,',

~

?,

NO
ABS.

f--------,. ------.
..1-1b-, l
YES

NO

P

..
"

ABS
YES

YES

'. ->~Q ;'

y~

-' ~NO

,..,. ~, "

'

2I,~

16 NO
~-

3 AI3.'::

" r·

.." ........ - .
.'
"

--

~

...

;.

.'

,

•

~

-~

-

_n

..

~',.-<'

,

..

•

,. ,

,

~

X

X

~-125

X

xxv-126
XXV-I27
XXV-128

X

RC
X

X
X
X
X

X

XXV-1J;,~

l..

"

NQ
YES

I

~-124

XXV-l30
XXV-131

" ~ 1 ~.~ ' :Tj ~ .

NO
NO
NO

YES

....- 'YEs ;'

'

. -,c

"

YE::i

' YES
''iES
------

~-----

YES
NO
NO
NO
YES

'c

-'

"u NO

,

IKIN

~-129

""" _.

:rEb.

!,i

,'

P

P
P

'.'.

; _t

p

RAZAKI
P
RILEY
EXOJSED
ROSENTHAL
P
SCill1ALTZ
P
SHULL
P
STEARNS
P
STRAND, 0
P
STRAND K EXOJSED
STRIrKTANr
P
TIPNIS
WALKER
'VI7AIJ.A.CE
hEBER
viHITE
WILNER
WINCHIP
ZERVIC

;

.Jj

..

'!'J:.~.

"

YES
NO
YES
,' NO·

' ~'N6

YE::i
':iYES .:c;;c '; · ·"· NU
.: ":'YES ... .,. \ ; NQ
: YES' . . ;..;;~

: ' YES

P
P

r'In "1'J:.~UN

THCMAS

YES
YES

P

P

- -

~..,...-

YES

U\JN:J.\J

P.t;K.t;z,

"

~.

YES

P
P
P

•

', '

" ::: :tES t'l"
..

P

P

P.t;K.t:~K

YES
YES

P

,

':1 ',, '

!"'~.

f

i ; <" .,

P

:-O/",

,

,

14

~Ia~ .

If)tl«>l

f-------- --------

----

.-.J.

"

J:;

1f)(Ia4

xxv Ia.

XXV-I23

NO
l.J:,.:>

LEVY

NU~::;

-

>e. ,

l'lV

P
P

t.1C CAW
HU ZT lMDAR
NELSEN

NO

:0"

XXVl43

l..e..::>

JOHNSON
KAISER
KING
.L.t:N'l'Z

LIEDTKE
LIND
WVE

,

XXVl3

*E,
If)tIM

P
P
P
P
P

GUKUI-'!l'l'Z
tiAyE::i

,

-

;:- XE:

IEXOJSED

DEV1NATZ
, ,~ lM N.l

IN::it;L

. :~J;25"

P
P

AMSTER

,

If>tlf)!(

If>tlM

IHI'"

Oolu.e 111.

5/4/94

iXXV-U3

IX

XXV ·134

'x ·

XXV'U~

X·

Proposed Student Code of Conduct
Table of Contents
Preamble .......................................................•... 1
Jurisdiction . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 1
General Regulations
Protecting the -fundamental rights of individuals ...............................
Protecting the rights of others based upon the nature of the
educational process . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..
Protecting the rights of the University ......................................
Adherence to local, state, and federal laws ..................................
Adjudication Procedures
Method of Filing Charges ..............................................
Rights and Duties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..
Victims' Rights in Disciplinary Proceedings .................................
Academic Dishonesty Procedures ...............................•........•
Residence Hall Cases ...............................................••
Student Organization Cases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..
Student Judicial Office Procedures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..
Hearing Panel Procedures ..............................................
Appeal JSi-ocedures .........................................•....•....
Record of DIsciplinary Actions ..........................................
Disciplinary Sanctions A vallable
Technical .........................................................
Censure ...........................................................
Disciplinary Probation ............................................•...
Disciplinary Suspension ...........................................•...
Disciplinary Dismissal ................................................
Other ............................................................

2
3
4
4

5
5

6
6
7
8
8
9
10
11
11

11
11

11
11
12

University Hearing Panel
Membership .............................................. '. . . . . . . . .. 12
Powers and Functions .............. '. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 14
Confidentiality of Hearings ............................................. 14
Student Grievance Comminee
,
General ..................................................•........
Membership. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..
Procedures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..
Appeal Procedures ...................................................
Other ............................................................

15
15
16
17
18

Student Code Enforcement and Review Board (SCERB) ....................•..... 18

[] =deletions

= ad hoc comminee revisions

= Student Affairs Committee revisions

April 26, 1994

Proposed Student Code of Conduct
I. Preamble
One of the goals of Illinois State University, as set forth in its mission statement, is to
"provide an academic atmosphere which nurtures intellectual activity within the
University community." This atmosphere is best fostered when the relationships
between members of the community are guided by the following principles that each
has an obligation to respect:

.
\

..

. ··· ·····0"·0·· ·········· ·

the fundamental rights of m91}1~it~Iothers];
the rights of others based upon the nature of the educational process;
the rights of the University;
adherence to local, state, and federal laws .

y

These principles require consistently applied behavioral standards and a method to fairly
judge student behavior and the behavior of their guests according to these standards. At
ISU both the standards and the method for judging are contained in the Student Code of
Conduct. [The purpose of this Code is, in part, to help students understand and accept
their obligations as members of this academic community.] The purpose of this Code
is, in part, to provide an educational framework for students so that they may make
responsible choices regarding their behavior as members of this academic community.
The University understands that in society, laws in general constantly change. As such,
the University cannot foresee each and every circumstance that may arise and which
may not be included herein. As such, a student may be subject to disciplinary sanctions
when such behavior is detrimental or disruptive of the purposes and/or goals of the
University and not provided for herein.

II. Jurisdiction
All Illinois State University students and Registered Student Organizations shall be held
responsible by the University for actions occurring on campus which violate University
regulations. All ISU students and Registered Student Organizations are also subject to
disciplinary sanctions for conduct off-campus when such conduct is detrimental or
disruptive of the purpose and/or goals of the University. Conduct which is harmful to
the welfare of the larger community and/or its citizens may also be subject to
University sanctions.

2

Students who are mem bers of a Registered Student Organization involved in a violation
of this Code may also be subject to individual sanctions. Students attending a function
as an official representative of the -University are subject to disciplinary sanctions for
violations of the Code. [Students may also be subject to disciplinary sanctions for the
actions of their guests which violate University regulations.] Should an act violate both
University regulations and public law, the student is subject to dual jurisdiction.
Jurisdiction for off-campus events may not be construed or interpreted to include
students who are convicted of crimes not in the public eye and without unusual public
reaction or potentially strong community disapproval.

m.

General Regulations
A. Protecting the fundamental rights of Iij(f~Yig-QQitothers]
1. Students shall take no action which endangers or tends to endanger the safety,
health, or life of any person.
2. Students shall take no action qr.#~P~m:~!§~n which damages or tends
to damage public or private property without consent of the owner or person
legally responsible.
~. A student shall not appropriate or~m:Jg:: i_:: possess public/private
property without the consent of the owner or the person legally responsible.
4. Students shall not possess or use firearms or explosive devices [i!:i~
Pij)~I:'ty. :§t: it:;i#yym¥~~~tY j ~J.im~:: m"£§9mil:::mg4jng:: Jbm:!1lt:!~
explosive devices], or any other devices classified as a weapon by the State of
Illinois on University property or at any University related function. Students
shall not possess explosive devices. Instruments used to simulate such weapons
in acts which endanger or tend to endanger any person shall be considered
weapons.
S. Students shall not engage in hazing which may include [or in] any initiation or
other 'activity which endangers the health or safety of an individual. or demands
an individual engage in conduct of an unbecoming or humiliating nature, or in
any way detracts from an individual's academic pursuits.
For purposes of this policy and University disciplinary action. lllinois State
University defines hazing to include any action taken or situation created.
wherever it occurs, which induces mental or physical discomfort,
embarrassment. harassment, or rldicule. Such actions include paddling. creation
of excessive fatigue, physical or psychological shock, wearing apparel which is
conspicuous and not in good taste, public stunts or buffoonery, morally
degrading or humiliating games or events. work sessions which interfere with
scholastic requirements, and any other activity which is inconsistent with
regulations or policies of Illinois State University or the laws of the State of
Illinois.
6. Students shall not commit any act in such an unreasonable manner as to alarm
or disturb another individual and provoke a breach of the peace. Such acts may

3
include harassment based upon an individual's race, color, religion, ancestry,
sexual orientation. physical or mental disability, national origin, ethnicity,
gender, veteran's status, or marital status, when the words or gestures used tend
to ~ijty[naturally] provoke violent resentment[,] and tend! to incite an
immediate breach of the peace, [and are directed at a specific individual].
7. Students shall not engage in any physical act which is sexual in nature and
which is committed u64.¢tdut~Q!Jwithout full and mf§rm~[knowing] consent
of all persons involved.
,~

SW~ri~~1la11·.· ri()t.· eJlgage·.· in·. ·actiQijWfJ.i91j~~IlI~:M~·!:.~!;!mJA

Ut~~4~~~Ilg :· f~t-f\n • ·. for ·. iIllm4*~~~ . ~nY· . ~. il~qr: !m9!l9i1!lm~§J.
~!~P~9r1. 9~ • Jhe~r(:ltti,~y·. Ji(~.

B. Protecting the rights of others based upon the nature of the educational process
1. Students are expected to be honest in all academic work. A student's name on
any academic exercise (theme, report. notebook, paper, examination) shall be
regarded as assurance that the work is the result of the student's own thought
and study. Offenses involving academic dishonesty include. but are not limited
to , the following:
a. Cheating on quizzes or examinations occurs when any student is found
•
,;
using or attempting to use any book, paper. or other article. or assistance
from apy Jl1t;fiyid~i1[fellow students] intending to deceive the person in
charge of the quiz or examination with reference to his or her work. No
books. notes. papers or .related articles shall be [brought into or] used at any
quiz or examination unless specifically authorized by the person in charge.
Conversation or other communication between ilUv.il.ijll [students] in
examinations and quizzes is forbidden except as authorized by the
instructor.
b. Computer dishonesty is the unacknowledged or unauthorized appropriation
of another's program. or the results of that program, in whole or in part. for
a 'computer-related exercise or assignment
c. Plagiarism is the unacknowledged appropriation of another's work. words,
or ideas in any themes, outlines, papers, reports, or computer programs.
Students must ascertain from the instructor in each course the appropriate
means of documentation. Submitting the same paper for more than one
course is considered a breach of academic integrity unless ptior approval is
given by the instructors.
"
d. Grade falsification is any attempt to falsify an assigned grade in an
examination, quiz. report, program, grade book, or any other record or
document
e. Collusion occurs when students willfully give or receive unauthorized or
unacknowledged assistance on any assignment. This may include the
reproduction and/or dissemination of test materials. Both parties to the
collusion are considered responsible. No i,4ililmYlstudent] may substitute
for another in any quiz or examination. ............... ........
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2.

Students shall not knowingly tear. mark. render imperfect. or otherwise damage
or destroy or wrongfully appropriate library materials.
3. Students shall not alter any official University record.
4. Students shall take no action which disrupts or tends to disrupt the peace.

c.

Protecting the rights of the University
1. Students shall not furnish false or misleading infonnation to University officials.
2. Students must [carry] present their lllinois State University Student ID cards [at
all times and present them] on request 19 : ;my : :w.mY~Ri.!iIpm9~g who must
identify herlhimself as such. These cards are non-transferable. Students may
not lend their 10 cards or use the 10 cards of other students.
3. Students are responsible for making certain that their financial obligations to the
University are met.
4. Students must observe the. rules relating to the use of University operated or
approved grounds, property, facilities, and services.
5. Students must follow oral and written instructions given by any University
official, student, faculty, or staff whom the Board of Regents or President has
vested with such authority and which are consistent with the intent of the
STUDENT HANDBOOK.
Ii. [Students of legal age, as specified by the State of Illinois, shall not possess or
consume alcoholic beverages except in specific areas designated by the
University and only in compliance with the University's Alcoholic Beverage
Policy.] A student of or visitor to the University shall not purchase, sell,
possess, or consume any alcoholic beverage unless that student or visitor is of
legal age as classified by the State of Illinois. Students of legal age may
possess or consume alcoholic beverages only in specific areas designated by the
University and only in compliance with the University'S Alcoholic Beverage
Policy.· Specific informmion is available in the Residence Hall Handbook.
Apartment Living Handbook, and in the Student Handbook.

D. Adherence to local, state. and federal laws
1. Students shall not commit or attempt to commit any act that would be in
violation of local. state. or federal laws.
2. Students shall not purchase. sell, possess or consume any alcoholic beverage
unless that student is of legal age as specified by the State of Illinois.
3. Students shall not possess or use any illegal or controlled drug or substance in
either refined or crude fonn except under the direction of a licensed physician.
No student shall sell or give such a drug or substance to any other person.

IV. Adjudication Procedures
A student involved in an alleged violation of the University regulations has a right to
due process as outlined below.
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A. Method of Filing Charges
1. Students may be charged with violating University regulations and J.ii.1
regulations shall be published in a place generally accessible to students.
2. Any member of the University community may file charges against a student
for alleged violation of the regulations. Such charges are to be filed with the
S.tudent Judicial Office and must be presented in writing.
B. Rights and Duties
The University will observe the following procedures and rights during the
disciplinary process.
1. In conducting investigations of violations of University regulations, University
officials shall respect the right of the individual to remain silent
2. Pending action on charges of violating a University regulation or pending ftnal
disposition of any appeal"the status of a student shall not be altered, nor shall
the right to be present on the campus to attend classes be suspended, except for
reasons relating to the welfare of the individual and/or the safety of others. I
s~94~ri~m;t.yp¢pla9~(t()1'l ····· · ·

~.

'. . .

',.

. .· :.· .:.;.:~:.r·

Students charged with violations of the Student Code of Conduct are required to
. meet with a professional staff person to facilitate the resolution of the case.
Failure to meet with a staff person will result in an additional charge of failure
to comply with the request of University officials and may result in forfeiture of
certain procedural rights.
4. Staff members shall inform students in writing of the reasons for any proposed
disciplinary action with sufficient particularity and [the names of the accuser] in
sufficient time to insure that the student has an opportunity to prepare for the
hearing.
5. To assist in preparing for a disciplinary hearing and to assist the student at such
a hearing, a student may choose an advisor. This advisor must be a member of
the University staff or student body.

m:~~Mm·P~rnUAqu~~tlO.•n.I.•K< However, no pe~~~n may be;quired to serve as
an advisor.
a. Students who serve as advisors must have a course load of more than six
semester hours and faculty-staff must have a minimum of 3/4 time .
appointment.
b. If a student is involved in a concurrent criminal charge arising from the
same incident, the student may request that an attorney be present during
the disciplinary hearing. However the attorney's role is limited to advising
the student, and the attorney may not directly participate in the hearing or
ask questions of the student or witnesses. The attorney may advise the
student not to answer certain questions.
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c.

The student has the right to present evidence and witnesses on hislher
behalf.

C. Victims' Rights in Disciplinary Proceedings
Students who are victims in matters involving the Student Code of Conduct shall be
accorded the following rights by all University officers, administrators, and other
employees.
1. The right to have any and all allegations treated with seriousness.
2. The right, as victims, to be treated with dignity.
3. At the victim's option. the right to have allegations investigated by the
appropriate agencies and adjudicated by the Student Judicial Office.
4. The right to pursue any and all avenues of redress.
5. The same right as the accused to have legal counsel and/or others present at any
University disciplinary proceeding, and the right to be notified of the outcome
of such proceedings.
.
6. The right to be informed of University resources, including but not limited to
the University police. counseling services. affmnative action. and student health
services.
7. The right, upon request, to have reasonable steps taken by the Student Iudicial
... OfficegtP!h¢lt:.tJriiY¢r~~tY · ~g¢n9~to prevent any unnecessary or unwanted
. contactwith · the · alleged · p~~~~9·~[assailants].

.

D. Academic Dishonesty Procedures
1. A~i~~mi¢' :i~t~gptyJs.•.·.·e xt,ectedmJW Cltas.s~"mJ~illlll
b~~qli$p&ns .r·e. · ~g.a.r.diJ)gU;suc~•.•·~it: :~C~~~Jq: I
l..l)jiY~~~~Yl"eg41atio~~: . .
. . . .... . .
. ...
.C..: . .
m.~~; : (~~g~lati()l'lIIJJH[Faculty members should clearly identify on
eachc:oursesyllablls lUlc1in all explanations of course requirements the
University, departmental. and course specific standards regarding academic
dishonesty.]
·2. Faculty members who discover evidence of academic dishonesty should arrange
to meet with the student as soon as possible to discuss the allegation. Prior to
this meeting the faculty member may consult with the Student Iudicial Office
staff.

3. If the student acknowledges the, act of academic dishonesty and the faculty
member is satisfied that the incident has been effectively resolved:
a. The faculty member will discuss the grade penalty to be applied and/or the
reparation required of the student. Faculty members should adhere to the
grade penalty policy, if any. as listed on the course syllabus.
b. A written summary of the incident and the resolution will be forwarded by
the faculty member to the Student Judicial Office.
.
c. A Student Judicial Office staff member will contact the student to arrange a
meeting to review the University standards of conduct related to academic
dishonesty.
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d.

If the student is currently in good disciplinary standing, the student will be
placed on Disciplinary Probation for i!~:: one calendar year.
e. If the student is not in good disciplinary standing, a fonnal disciplinary
hearing will be scheduled to determine the appropriate disciplinary sanction,
which may include suspension from the University.
4. If the student denies the allegation of academic dishonesty or the faculty
member believes the severity of the incident may warrant a sanction more
severe than Disciplinary Probation:
a. The faculty member will forward a written summary of the incident to the
Student Judicial Office. This summary must contain copies of all evidence
including the names of any witnesses. The student will have access to all
material given to the Hearing Panel.
b. A Student Judicial Office staff member will contact the student to arrange a
meeting to review the.. student's rights in the judicial process, the charges
against the student. ano hearing procedures.
c. A formal disciplinary hearing will be scheduled as soon as possible to
determine if a violation of university regulations has taken place and. if so,
the appropriate sanction to apply.
d. No grade penalty should be assigned by the instructor until the Hearing
,
Panel determines that an act of academic dishonesty has occurred. If the
charges cannot be resolved prior to the end of the current semester, no
course grade should be assigned pending the outcome of the hearing.
e. The faculty member will be notified of the outcome of the disciplinary case
in order to assign grade penalties for violations.
5. Students receiving a grade penalty for alleged academic dishonesty violations
without adherence to the above procedures may file a grievance.

.

E. Residence Hall Cases
l. In cases received by Residence Hall personnel, the student will initially be
contacted by and requested to make an appointment with the Residence Hall
Coordinator or the Graduate Assistant
2. It is the responsibility of the professional staff member to inform the student of
his/her rights and responsibilities.
3. During the meeting. the student will have the opportunity to examine the
charges and be given the chance to respond.
4. If the student agrees with the description of the incident. the professional staff
member may recommend an administrative sanction. In addition, an alternative
sanction may be assigned. In order for an administrative sanction to be applied,
all of the following conditions must exist:
a. The student involved has no previous disciplinary record or not more than
two censures.
b. [Only one regulation has been cited in the case being revieWed.]
c. The appropriate sanction for the violation cited is a Technical Violation or a
Censure. Restitution or other appropriate sanctions may be applied in

8
addition to a Censure.
It appears that a positive behavioral change on the part of the student can
be achieved without a fonnal hearing.
e. The student, after being informed of hislher rights, waives the right to a
formal hearingilndttppealin writing.
f. The student and the staff member agree on the description of the incident
and on the sanctions applied in writing.
5. A professional staff member of the Student Judicial Office will review the
recommendation. If the staff member approves the recommendation, the
Student Judicial Office will fonnally apply the sanction and notify the student
by mail of the action.
6. If no sanction is agreed upon by the student and the residence hall staff, or if
the Student Judicial Office disagrees with the sanction recommended, the
student will be required t() meet with a professional staff member of the Student
Judicial Office and/or be scheduled to attend a hearing.
d.

F. Student Organization Cases
1. In cases received by the Pffic~9~'Student Life [and Programs Office], the
student organization will initially be contacted by and requested to make an
;, appointment with a professional staff member from that office.
2. It is the responsibility of the staff member to inform the organization of its
rights and responsibilities.
3. During the meeting, the organization will have the opportunity to examine the
charges brought against it and be given the chance to respond.
4. If the organization agrees with the description of the incident, the staff member
may recommend an administrative sanction. In addition, an alternative sanction
may be assigned.
5. A professional staff member of the Student Judicial Office will review the
recommendation. If the staff member approves the recommendation, the
Student Judicial Office will formally apply the sanction and notify the
organization by mail of the action.
6. If no administrative sanctions are applied, or if the Student Judicial Office
disagrees with the sanction recommended, the Student Judicial Office will
schedule a hearing to resolve the charges.
7. Individual members of student organizations may also face disciplinary
sanctions.
'
G. In cases received from areas other than those specified above. the student will be
contacted by and requested to meet with a staff member of the Student Judicial
Office.
H. Student Judicial Office Procedures
1. It is the responsibility of the Student Judicial Office staff member to inform
students of their rights.
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2. During the meeting, students will be able to examine the charges brought
against them and be given the chance to respond.
3. If the student agrees with the description of the incident, the Student Judicial
Office staff members may apply an administrative sanction if all of the
following conditions exist:
a. The appropriate sanction is a Technical Violation, a Censure, or
Disciplinary Probation. Restitution or other appropriate sanctions may be
applied in addition to a Censure or Disciplinary Probation.
b. It appears that a positive behavioral change on the part of the student can
be achieved without a formal hearing.
c. The student, after being informed of his/her rights, waives the right to a
fonnal hearing in writing.
d. The student accepts the sanction applied.
4. Once an administrative sanction has been applied, the student will be officially
notified in writing.
5. In the event that an administrative sanction cannot be applied, the student will
be scheduled for a hearing.
I. Hearing Panel Procedures
~ student who is accused of violating a University regUlation may plead innocent or
gUilty or have guilt or innocence determined by a Hearing Panel.

Ii
2. If admitting gUilt, the student has a right to appear and explain extenuating or
mitigating circumstances and to have character witnesses.
3. The accused student has the opportunity to appear and to explain, to present
evidence and witnesses, to hear and question adverse witnesses, and to review
and respond to written statements used as evidence. The accused student will
be informed of the names of the accusers and witnesses except when their
physical welfare may be in jeopardy as a result of this disclosure.
4. If a student fails to appear before the Hearing Panel, the case will be
adjudicated in the student's absence. In addition, this failure to appear may
have an effect on the sanctions applied.
5. If denying guilt, the burden of ~roof rests upon the person making the
accusation. Hearing Panel decisions are based upon a preponderance of the
evidence presented.
6. At the conclusion of a hearing, the Hearing Panel shall find the allegations
proven or not proven. If not proven, the student will be given a Oearance. A
Clearance is an official statement that the student has not been found in
violation of University regulations.
7. If a student pleads gUilty or guilt is determined by a Hearing Panel, the Panel
will be informed of a student's past disciplinary history. Such history may, and
in most cases does, have an effect on the sanction applied.
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8. To facilitate appeals, each Hearing Panel shall, after their deliberations, produce
a written statement including a list of charges, a brief rationale of the Panel's
decisions, and the sanctions applied. This written statement·shall be given to
the appropriate Student Judicial Office staff member. In the case of appeals,
this statement will be forwarded to the appeal body.
9. A statement of the Hearing Panel's decision shall be mailed to the student
following the hearing.
J.

Appeal Procedures
1. Administrative decisions made in the student's absence or Hearing Panel
decisions may be appealed by the student in writing to the Student Code
Enforcement and Review Board within ten days of the decision. An appeal
must be based upon one or more of the following grounds:
a. The student must present new relevant evidence which was not reasonably
possible to obtain at the time of the hearing.
b. The student must set forth specific facts to support the allegation that the
decision of the Hearing Panel and/or the sanctions applied were not
consistent with the evidence presented.
c. The student must demonstrate that procedures used during the investigation
and/or hearing substantially prejudiced the decision.
2. Disposition of Appeals
The Student Code Enforcement and Review Board may make one of the
following decisions as the result of an appeal.
a. The appeal may be denied. Reasons for the denial will be provided to the
student in writing.
b. The original Hearing Panel decision may be altered. However, the severity
of the original sanction may not be increased.
c. The case may be returned for further deliberation to the original Hearing
Panel or a new Hearing Panel constituted for this purpose.
3. Decisions resulting in sanctions other than suspension or dismissal are fmal
after appeal to the Student Code Enforcement and Review Board.
4. Appeals to the President of the University
Decisions resulting in suspension or dismissal may be appealed to the President
of the University or the President's designee. In cases of academic dishonesty,
appeals will be decided in consultation with the Vice President and Provost
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University must be received within ten days of the Student Code Enforcement
and Review Board's decision. The President's or designee's decision shall be
the final decision.

K. Record of Disciplinary Actions
1. In compliance with the State of lllinois Records Act, records of disciplinary
action are maintained for a minimum of five years. Should a student be placed
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on disciplinary probation, the record will be maintained five years after the
student is returned to good standing. In cases of suspension and dismissal, the
record is kept indefinitely.
2. All Hearing Panels will make an audio tape record of the hearing proceedings.
Each tape will be preserved for ten days following the Panel's decision. Such
tapes will be made available to the Student Code Enforcement and Review
Board if it hears an appeal of the case. If no appeal is received within the
prescribed time, the tape will be erased.
3. Information in these records is confidential. Only persons authorized by the
Student Judicial Office in accordance with Federal regulations or the student
may have access to these records.
4. No disciplinary action is noted on any permanent record of any student
Student records of disciplinary action are maintained by the Student Judicial
Office.
\

\

V. Disciplinary Sanctions Available
A. Technical Violation is an official statement that the student has i
violated [the letter, but not the spirit, of] a University regUlation .

__

.

"

B. Censure is an official statement that the student has violated a University regulation.
It is intended to communicate most strongly both the disapproval and the reprimand
of the University community.
C. Disciplinary Probation is a serious encumbrance upon the student's good standing in
the University. Disciplinary Probation will last at least one semester. Any
subsequent violation of University regulations during the probationary period will
be evaluated within the context of the student's probationary status and may result
in more serious sanctions. Only three Disciplinary Probation sanctions are allowed
in a student' s academic career at ISU. It is recommended that any violation of
University regulations after the third Disciplinary Probation results in Disciplinary
Suspension or Disciplinary Dismissal.
D. Disciplinary Suspension establishes a fixed period of time during which the student
may not participate in any academic or other activities of the University. At the
end of the suspension period, ~he student may be readmitted only upon the
recommendation of the Student Code Enforcement and Review Board.
E. Disciplinary Dismissal denies the student the right to participate in any academic or
other activities of the University for an indefinite time. Only under the most
unusual circumstances will a dismissed student be readmitted, and then only upon
the recommendation of the Student Code Enforcement and Review Board.
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F. In cases of academic dishonesty, failing grades or other grade penalties may be
recommended by the instructor in accordance with the Academic Dishonesty
procedures. Due to the seriousness of academic dishonesty violations. it is
recommended that the minimum sanction imposed by the University Hearing Panel
be Disciplinary Probation.
G. For failure to meet financial obligations to the University. a student may be
prohibited from registering andlor receiving academic transcripts, and refused the
use of all other University services until the financial obligation is met.
H. In cases where it is detetmined that a student has been involved in the sale andlor
distribution of illegal or controlled drugs or substances, it is recommended that the
minimal sanction imposed be Disciplinary Suspension.
I.

A Hearing Panel may recommend removal from ISU residence halls or relocation of
a student to another hall. The Panel may decide on the duration of the removal or
relocation. Final determination of removal or relocation is the responsibility of the
Office of Residential Life.
J. In cases involving registered student organizations, organizations found 1 =! I!§.lilll
~~ Jguilty of violating] University regulations may have their official University
registration status suspended or revoked.
K. Hearing Panels may impose sanctions other than those listed here. Such sanctions
must have a reasonable relationship to the offenses committed. The purpose of
such sanctions should be to broaden the student's or organization's understanding of
the nature of the Code of Conduct offense, and the reasons underlying the
University regulations.

L. Official a[A]gencies or organizations [within] of the University such as but not
limited to Milner Library, Residential Life, and Parking Services, may establish.
assess, and collect fines independent of any judicial action or disciplinary sanction.
VI. University Hearing Panel
The University Hearing Panel has been established by the Student Code Enforcement
and Review Board to assume responsibility for the enforcement of the Student Code of
Conduct
A. Membership
The University Hearing Panel will operate under the principles of shared
governance. Therefore, the following procedures will be followed to ensure
appropriate representation by students and faculty members.
1. Students
a. Administrative staff from the Student Judicial Office will coordinate a
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comprehensive recruitment campaign at the beginning of the fall and spring
semesters to attract student volunteers.
b. The Student Judicial Office shall make a reasonable attempt to insure that
the hearing panel pool consists of representatives of the entire student
population. Position announcements will be advertised in the student
newspaper. residence hall floors and dining centers, and public bulletin
boards on campus. All Registered Student Organizations will receive
information concerning the selection process. Faculty and staff members
may be contacted to recommend candidates for consideration. Students who
have expressed an interest or who have been recommended by faculty, staff,
or current hearing panel members will receive a letter of invitation to
participate in the selection process.
c. An informational meeting will be held prior to the applications deadline to
discuss the position and the selection process with prospective candidates.
d. Students must be in good academic <~~n)and disciplinary standing in order
to apply. The application will authorize "the release of necessary records for
verification purposes.
e. Each candidate will participate in both a group screening activity and an
individual interview. Current Hearing Panel members, professional
;'
residence hall staff. and student life staff will be asked to assist the Student
Judicial Office staff in the screening and interview process.
f. Those candidates selected for membership on the University Hearing Panel
must complete an initial course of training before their service may begin.
g. Once selected. students may continue to serve on the Hearing Panel until
graduation. They may be removed from membership at the discretion of
the Director of the Student Judicial Office for any of the following reasons:
failure to participate in training activities, failure to attend scheduled
hearings, poor performance appraisals, failure to maintain good academic
standing, violation of University regUlations, failure to uphold
confidentiality requirements, or other issues as specified by the Director.
2. Faculty
a. The Academic Senate shall appoint twenty-five faculty members for service
on the University Hearing Panel.
b. Faculty appointments are for a two-year period. Faculty may be
reappointed.
c. The Director of the Student' Judicial Office will contact all new faculty
appointees to provide information and training about the University Hearing
Panel.
d. The Director will notify the Academic Senate and request alternate
appointments if a faculty member cannot fulfill the responsibilities of the
position.

.

The Student Code Enforcement and Review Board reserves the right to authorize
increases in the number of University Hearing Panel members consistent with the
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process outlined above.
B. Powers and Functions
1. The University Hearing Panel shall have the power to hold hearings and apply
sanctions consistent with University policies and regulations.
2. A student accused of violating any of the General Regulations of the Student
Code of Conduct may have the case heard before a University Hearing Panel.
3. Arrangements for all University Hearing Panels shall be made by the Student
Judicial Office.
4. [Hearing Panels shall consist of three members selected from the member pool.
including a chairperson. Each Hearing Panel shall be made up of at least one
student and at least one faculty person. The student whose case is being heard
may choose whether the third member of the Hearing Panel is a student or a
faculty person.} The student whose case is being heard may choose to have the
case heard by an all student, all faculty or combination Hearing Panel. Such
requests will be honored as schedules permit The referred student and the
referral source may request, for cause, that particular members of the Panel not
be assigned to a case. Such requests will be honored except for justifiable
reasons. The referred student may appeal a Hearing Panel decision on
y
procedural grounds if the student's choice regarding Panel composition was not
honored.
5. The student whose case is being heard. or the person or agency bringing the
case. may request. for cause, that particular members of the Hearing Panel not
be assigned to the case. The final determination on such requests will be made
by the Student Judicial Office staff.
6. No student or faculty person who has had personal involvement or special
interest in a case may serve on that Hearing Panel.
7. A staff member from the Student Iudicial Office serves as a consultant without
vote to each Hearing Panel. The student may request that a particular
consultant not be assigned to the Panel hearing the case. and if reasonably
possible, such requests will be honored.

.

C. Confidentiality of Hearings
All cases reviewed by Hearing Panels are considered to be confidential. The
following procedures are intended to insure this confidentiality. Deviation from
these procedures is considered in ra're instances and then only when mutually agreed
upon by the involved student and Hearing Panel.
1. A number is assigned to the student appearing before a Hearing Panel in lieu of
the student's name.
2. Hearings involve only the student accused of violating regulations, that
student's advisor. and witnesses called by the Panel hearing the case. Members
of the UniversitycommunitYlllay act as observers of the proceedings mI!
wherih'l~tuany< agreeduponby[ at the discretion of] the student and PaneL
Observers may not enter into the discussion or vote on a case.
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E. Appeal Procedures
1. Either pany may appeal a decision of the Student Grievance Committee to the
Student Code Enforcement and Review Board. Such an appeal must be in
written form and be received within ten days of the Committee's decision. An
appeal must be based upon one or more of the following grounds:
a. The appellant must present new relevant evidence which was not reasonably
possible to obtain at the time of the hearing.
b. The appellant must set forth specific facts to suppon the allegation that the
decision of the Student Grievance Committee andlor the resolution
recommended were not consistent with the evidence presented.
c. The appellant must demonstrate that procedures used during the
investigation andlor hearing substantially prejudiced the decision.
2. Disposition of Appeals .
The Student Code Enforcement and Review Board may make one of the
following decisions as the \result of an appeal.
a. The appeal may be denied.
b. The original Student Grievance Committee decision may be altered.
c. The case may be returned to the Student Grievance Committee for further
investigation andlor deliberation.
F. The audio tape record of any formal hearing will be destroyed or erased thirty days
after a final decision. The grievance file will be maintained for five years. A
summary of the grievance case will be maintained for an additional five years in
accordance with the State Records Act.
G. Should a person or University agency decline to follow the recommended resolution
of the grievance, the President or the President's designee shall seek to resolve the
impasse. If no resolution can be affected. the final decision will rest with the
President or the President's designee. If necessary. the President or the President's
designee will take appropriate action and enforce it
H. Nothing in the above procedures for dealing with grievances may be construed to
abridge or modify any rights and privileges granted to students in other sections of
the Student Handbook.

vrn. Student Code Enforcement and Review Board (SCERB)
A. SCERB shall supervise the enforcement of all policies and regulations affecting
students at lllinois State University.
1. SCERB may delegate responsibility for enforcement of particular regulations to
judicial units or other agencies of the University.
2. SCERB shall designate the jurisdiction of, and approve the procedures used by.
any unit or agency to which it delegates responsibility.
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B. SeERB shall establish the basic procedures for and will supervise and coordinate
the work of all judicial agencies.

c.

SCERB shall have the authoIity to review all actions of the University Hearing
Panel and the Student GIievance Committee.

D. At th-e request of students or University agencies, SCERB may review rules and
regulations affecting students established by any University agency to determine if
such rules and regulations are consistent with the philosophy and intent of the
Student Code of Conduct.
E. SCERB is vested with the responsibility for reviewing and recommending revisions
of the Student Code of Conduct.
F. Membership
\
The members of SCERB shall be three students and three faculty members
nominated by the Academic Senate and appointed by the President. Preference
should be given to those with Grievance Committee, Hearing Panel, or similar
experience. The Executive Secretary of SCERB or hislher designee serves as a
~on-voting member. The Chairperson of SCERB shall be elected by the Board.
Faculty are appointed for three year staggered tenns. Students are appointed on an
annual basis. Members may be reappointed. Two alternates, one student and one
faculty member, are also selected by the above process. Members of SeERB may
not serve concurrently on the Student Grievance Committee or on the University
Hearing Panel.
1. If a voting member is unable to serve, the chairperson will designate the
alternate of the same constituency to serve as a voting member.
2. Student members of SCERB not in good academic or disciplinary standing at
the University shall be removed from the Board. The notification of such
removal will be in writing.
G. A quorum will consist of two students, two faculty members. and the Executive
Secretary or hislher designee.
H. The Board may designate a temporary chairperson to serve in absence of the
chairperson.
'

I.

)

When SeERB functions as an appeal board or when it reviews petitions for
reinstatement, its meetings are closed. All other meetings will be open to members
of the University community.

